
 
      Nevada Commission on Ethics 

Notice of October 20, 2021 Commission Meeting and Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

http://ethics.nv.gov 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

 
NAME OF ORGANIZATION: NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
DATE & TIME OF MEETING:  Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
PLACE OF MEETING:  This meeting will be held at the following location: 

 
Nevada State Capitol Building 

Guinn Room 
101 N. Carson Street, Second Floor 

Carson City, NV 89701 
 

*Commissioners may appear via Zoom (virtually or telephonically). 
  

In addition to in-person attendance at the noticed location, the public may attend via Zoom 
telephonically, as follows: 

 
Zoom Meeting Information 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82104238959?pwd=Z2pESHFDU053VkdYbkh6M2l3dTIrZz09 
Zoom Meeting Telephone Number: 669-900-9128* 

Meeting ID: 821 0423 8959 
Passcode: 935222 

 
*Please Note: If you choose to participate telephonically,  

your telephone number may be displayed in the Zoom public platform. 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE ALSO INVITED TO SUBMIT WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT  
WHICH WILL BE SUBMITTED INTO THE RECORD OF THE PUBLIC MEETING. 

 

AGEND A 
 

NOTES: 
▪ Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration. 
▪ At any time, an agenda item may be taken out of order, removed, or delayed. 
▪ Public comment will be accepted at the beginning of the open session and again before the 

conclusion of the open session of the meeting.  Comment and/or testimony by the public 
may be limited to three (3) minutes.  No action may be taken on any matter referred to in 
remarks made as public comment.  Members of the public may also submit written public 
comment to the Commission at ncoe@ethics.nv.gov.  
 

 1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 2. Public Comment. Comment and/or testimony by any member of the public will be 
limited to three (3) minutes. No action will be taken under this agenda item. 

 
 
 

For 
Possible 
Action 

3. Approval of Minutes of the September 15, 2021 Commission Meeting. 

http://ethics.nv.gov/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82104238959?pwd=Z2pESHFDU053VkdYbkh6M2l3dTIrZz09
mailto:ncoe@ethics.nv.gov


 
      Nevada Commission on Ethics 

Notice of October 20, 2021 Commission Meeting and Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 

For 
Possible 
Action 

4. Discussion and approval of a Proposed Stipulation concerning Ethics Complaint No. 
20-010C regarding Bonnie Weber, Councilmember, City of Reno, State of Nevada. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

5. Discussion and approval of a Proposed Stipulation concerning Ethics Complaint No. 
19-095C regarding Jim Alworth, Councilmember, City of Ely, State of Nevada. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

6. Discussion and approval of a Proposed Stipulation concerning Ethics Complaint No. 
20-063C regarding Danielle Milam, Planning and Development Director, Las Vegas-
Clark County Library District, State of Nevada. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

7. Confirmation of Commission Chair’s appointment of Tracy Chase, Commission 
Counsel, as acting interim Executive Director, for all administrative matters, including 
without limitation, agency operations, advisory opinion matters and certain ethics 
complaint matters. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

8. Confirmation of Commission Chair’s appointment of Elizabeth Bassett, Associate 
Counsel, to fulfill the duties of the Executive Director during the interim on certain 
matters relating to Ethics Complaint cases. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

9. Report by Commission Counsel, as Acting Executive Director, on agency status and 
operations and possible direction thereon. Items to be discussed include, without 
limitation: 
• FY22 Budget Status 
• Status of processing of Jurisdictional Reviews, Investigations and Complaints 
• Update on Current Caseload 
• Executive Director Recruitment 
• Commission Meeting Status 
• Update on Education and Outreach 

 
 

 
10. Commissioner Comments on matters including, without limitation, identification of 

future agenda items, upcoming meeting dates and meeting procedures. No action 
will be taken under this agenda item. 

 
11. Public Comment. Comment and/or testimony by any member of the public may 

be limited to three (3) minutes. No action will be taken under this agenda item. 

For 
Possible 
Action 

12. Adjournment. 

NOTES: 

❖ The Commission is pleased to make reasonable accommodations for any member of the public who has a 
disability and wishes to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify 
the Nevada Commission on Ethics, in writing at 704 W. Nye Lane, Ste. 204, Carson City, Nevada 89703; via 
email at ncoe@ethics.nv.gov or call 775-687-5469 as far in advance as possible. 

❖ To request an advance copy of the supporting materials for any open session of this meeting, contact Acting 
Executive Director Tracy L. Chase, Esq. at ncoe@ethics.nv.gov or call 775-687-5469. 

❖ This Agenda and supporting materials are posted and are available not later than the 3rd working day before the 
meeting at the Commission’s office, 704 W. Nye Lane, Ste. 204, Carson City, Nevada, or on the Commission’s 
website at www.ethics.nv.gov.   

❖ Any meeting or hearing held by the Commission pursuant to NRS 281A.760 to receive information or evidence 
regarding the conduct of a public officer or employee and deliberations of the Commission concerning an ethics 
complaint are exempt from the provisions of NRS Chapter 241, Nevada’s Open Meeting Law. As a result, these 
agenda items, or any portion of them, may be heard in closed session. 

This Notice of Public Meeting and Agenda was posted in compliance with NRS 241.020 before 9:00 a.m. on 

the third working day before the meeting at the following locations: 
• Nevada Commission on Ethics, 704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204, Carson City 

• Nevada Commission on Ethics' website: http://ethics.nv.gov 

• Nevada Public Notice Website: http://notice.nv.gov 

mailto:ncoe@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:ncoe@ethics.nv.gov
http://www.ethics.nv.gov/
http://ethics.nv.gov/


Agenda Item 3 



Page 1 of 3 

 STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

http://ethics.nv.gov 
 
 

MINUTES 
of the meeting of the 

NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 
 

The Commission on Ethics held a public meeting on 
Wednesday, September 15, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. 

Virtually via Zoom as follows: 
 
 

Zoom Meeting Information:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81292073978?pwd=SXRpOFNKeVpDSnRNbjluYktnSGtFQT09 

Zoom Meeting Telephone Number: 669-900-9128 
Meeting ID: 812 9207 3978 

Passcode: 288278 

 

 
These minutes constitute a summary of the above proceedings of the Nevada 

Commission on Ethics. A recording of the meeting is available for public inspection at the 
Commission’s office.  
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 

 Chair Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM appeared via videoconference and called the meeting 
to order at 10:01 a.m. Also appearing via videoconference were Vice-Chair Brian Duffrin and 
Commissioners Barbara Gruenewald, Esq., Teresa Lowry, Esq., James Oscarson, Damian 
Sheets, Esq., Thoran Towler, Esq. and Amanda Yen, Esq. Present for Commission staff in Carson 
City were Executive Assistant Kari Pedroza. Commission Counsel Tracy L. Chase, Esq., 
Associate Counsel Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq., Investigator Erron Terry, and Senior Legal 
Researcher Darci Hayden appeared via videoconference.  

 
The pledge of allegiance was conducted. 
 

2. Public Comment.  
 
There was no public comment.  

 
3. Approval of Minutes of the July 21, 2021 Commission Meeting. 

 
Chair Wallin stated that except for Commissioner Sheets, who was excused from the 

meeting and would abstain from participating on this item, all other Commissioners were present 
for the July 21 meeting and could participate on this item. 

 
 

 

http://ethics.nv.gov/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81292073978?pwd=SXRpOFNKeVpDSnRNbjluYktnSGtFQT09


 

Page 2 of 3  

Commissioner Yen moved to approve the July 21, 2021 Commission Meeting Minutes as 
presented. Commissioner Oscarson seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and 
carried as follows: 

 
Chair Wallin:    Aye. 
Vice-Chair Duffrin:   Aye. 
Commissioner Gruenewald:  Aye. 

 Commissioner Lowry:   Aye. 
 Commissioner Oscarson:  Aye. 
 Commissioner Towler:   Aye. 

Commissioner Sheets:  Abstain. 
Commissioner Yen:   Aye.   

 
4. Report by Executive Director on agency status and operations and possible direction 

thereon. Items to be discussed include, without limitation: 

• Update on Commission Operations 

• FY22 Budget Status 

• Update on Current Caseload 

• Update on Education and Outreach  
 
Update on Commission Operations: Commission Counsel Chase as Acting Executive 

Director provided an update on Commission Operations including the status of the PDI Case 
Management Contract and the Executive Director position recruitment process.  

 
FY22 Budget Status: Commission Counsel Chase informed the Commission that staff is 

monitoring the Commission’s budget through projections and the Commission is within its 
budgetary authority for the Fiscal Year with cost savings in Travel and Court Reporting budget 
categories.  

 
Update on Current Caseload: Commission Counsel Chase stated that the Commission 

would continue to review cases through the review panel process and could expect review panel 
hearings in the month of October. She also informed the Commission that there may be a need 
for an adjudicatory hearing in October as well.   

 
Update on Education and Outreach: Commission Counsel Chase thanked Chair Wallin 

for volunteering to provide training to the UNLV Graduate Class on September 27. Commission 
Counsel Chase reported that she reached out to Senior Deputy Attorney General Rosalie 
Bordelove to coordinate the October 21 State Boards and Commissions Ethics Training. 

 
Commissioner Lowry asked that all resumes submitted for the Executive Director vacancy 

be provided to all Commissioners.  
 
Commissioner Oscarson moved to accept the Executive Director’s agency status report 

as presented. Commissioner Lowry seconded the motion. The motion was put to a vote and 
carried unanimously. 
 

5. Consideration and direction on the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report presented by the 
Executive Director pursuant to NAC 281A.180(2). 
 
Commission Counsel presented the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Report draft included in the 

Meeting Materials. She offered that Commissioners would provide proposed changes to staff via 
electronic mail and the report could be finalized at a future Commission Meeting.  

 
Chair Wallin proposed the Annual Report be finalized at the November 17 Commission 

Meeting to allow her fellow Commissioners time to review the report and provide revisions to staff.  



 

Page 3 of 3  

 
Vice-Chair Duffrin made a motion to continue the 2021 Annual Report Agenda Item until 

the November 17 2021 Commission Meeting. Commissioner Yen seconded the motion. The 
motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously.  
 

6. Commissioner comments on matters including, without limitation, identification of future 
agenda items, upcoming meeting dates and meeting procedures. No action will be taken 
under this agenda item. 

 
Vice-Chair Duffrin thanked the Commissioner staff for their hard work.   
 

7. Public Comment. 
 

There was no public comment.  
 

8. Adjournment. 
 
Commissioner Yen made a motion to adjourn the public meeting. Commissioner Lowry 

seconded the motion. The Motion was put to a vote and carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:31 a.m. 

 
Minutes prepared by:     Minutes approved October 15, 2021: 
 
/s/ Kari Pedroza  ________  ____________________ 
Kari Pedroza  Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM 
Executive Assistant      Chair 
 
/s/ Tracy L. Chase, Esq.   __________ ___________________ 
Tracy L. Chase, Esq.   Brian Duffrin  
Acting Executive Director   Vice-Chair  
 



Agenda Item 4 



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 
In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember, 
City Council, City of Reno,  
State of Nevada,  
 
 Subject. /                                                              

Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 20-010C 

 

 
PROPOSED 

STIPULATED DEFERRAL AGREEMENT 
 
 1. PURPOSE: This Stipulated Deferral Agreement resolves Ethics Complaint 

Case No. 20-010 before the Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) regarding 

alleged misconduct of Bonnie Weber (“Weber”), Councilmember, City of Reno (“City”), 

Nevada. 

 2. JURISDICTION: At all material times, Weber served as a public officer for 

the City, as defined in NRS 281A.160 and 281A.182. The Ethics in Government Law 

(“Ethics Law”) set forth in NRS Chapter 281A gives the Commission jurisdiction over 

elected and appointed public officers and public employees whose conduct is alleged to 

have violated the provisions of NRS Chapter 281A. See NRS 281A.280. Accordingly, the 

Commission has jurisdiction over Weber in this matter. 

 3. PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

a. On or about February 10, 2020, the Commission received Ethics Complaint No. 

20-010C (“Complaint”). 

b. A redacted version of the Complaint1 provided to Weber alleges that private 

meetings Weber held with North Valley’s stakeholders, including property 

developers and builders, violated the Ethics Law—at least in part because the 

meetings included privately paid for lunches and were attended by certain City 

staff.  The confidential Requester checked boxes on the complaint form alleging 

 
1 The Ethics Complaint was redacted to keep the identity of the Requester confidential pursuant to NRS 
281A.750. 



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

that Weber violated NRS 281A.400(1), (2), (5) and (7) and NRS 281A.420(1) 

and (3). 

c. On March 26, 2020, the Commission issued its Order on Jurisdiction and 

Investigation directing the Executive Director to investigate allegations that 

Weber violated NRS 281A.400(1), (2) and (7), and inviting Weber to provide a 

written response to the allegations in the Complaint. 

d. On April 2, 2020, the Commission issued its Amended Notice of Complaint and 

Investigation pursuant to NRS 281A.720, noting Commissioner Yen’s 

disclosure and abstention from these proceedings. 

e. On April 2, 2020, the Commission issued its Amended Order on Jurisdiction 

and Investigation dismissing allegations that Weber violated NRS 281A.400(5) 

and NRS 281A.420(1) and (3) for lack of sufficient evidence in the Complaint. 

f. On May 5, 2020, Weber voluntarily waived the statutory time limits for the 

Executive Director to complete the investigation, and for the review panel to 

render an opinion.    

g. On June 29, 2020, Weber submitted documentary evidence, sworn statements, 

and a Response to Notice of Complaint and Investigation to the Commission.  

Weber argues and maintains that she did not violate NRS 281A.400(1), (2) or 

(7) by using City letterhead for a private event or accepting payment for lunches 

from developers who had land-use matters before City Council.  

h. On August 18, 2021, the Executive Director presented a recommendation 

relating to just and sufficient cause to a Review Panel (“Panel”) consisting of 

Vice-Chair Brian Duffrin and Commissioners Barbara Gruenewald, Esq. and 

James Oscarson pursuant to NRS 281A.720.  The Panel reviewed: (1) Ethics 

Complaint No. 20-010C; (2) Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation in Ethics 

Complaint No. 20-010C; (3) Weber’s Response to the Complaint; (4) Executive 

Director’s Recommendation to the Review Panel with Summary of 

Investigatory Findings; and (5) Relevant Evidentiary Exhibits.   

i. The Panel unanimously concluded that the facts established credible evidence 

to support a determination that just and sufficient cause existed for the 



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

Commission to render an opinion in the matter regarding the alleged violation 

of NRS 281A.400(1), (2) and (7). 

j. Pursuant to its Review Panel Determination and Referral Order dated August 

18, 2021, the Panel referred the Complaint to the Commission for further 

proceedings, including rendering an opinion on whether Weber violated NRS 

281A.400(1), (2) and (7) with regard to accepting a gift which would tend 

improperly to influence a reasonable person in the public officer’s position to 

depart from the faithful and impartial discharge of the public officer’s public 

duties, using her position to secure unwarranted privileges, preferences or 

advantages, and improperly using governmental time, property, equipment or 

resources, including use of public staff, to benefit a significant personal or 

pecuniary interest. 

k. On August 31, 2021, the Commission issued its Notice of Hearing and 

Scheduling Order authorizing the parties to engage in continued investigation 

of facts and exchange of written discovery, including interrogatories, requests 

for production, requests for admission, and depositions, as permitted by NRS 

Chapter 281A and NAC Chapter 281A.  

l. On September 1, 2021, the Commission issued its Revised Notice of Hearing 

and Scheduling Order, correcting the date for the adjudicatory hearing, and 

reaffirming its prior order (“Scheduling Order”). 

m. Pursuant to the Scheduling Order, the Executive Director continued the 

investigation of the facts and the parties engaged in discovery. 

n. During the course of the Executive Director’s investigation and the parties’ 

discovery efforts, Weber was transparent, forthcoming, and cooperative with 

the Commission investigator and counsel, including without limitation, 

voluntarily meeting with the investigator and counsel to answer questions, 

providing documentary evidence, identifying potential witnesses and persons 

with knowledge, producing City policies and procedures, and coordinating with 

City officers and employees and Commission staff and counsel. 



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

o. Upon completion of the Executive Director’s investigation and the parties’ 

discovery, the undisputed evidence shows that Weber did not use City 

letterhead for private events and did not accept payment for lunches from 

developers who had land-use matters before City Council. 

p. With regards to claims that Weber improperly used City staff to benefit a 

significant personal or pecuniary interest, the evidence shows that City of Reno, 

Policies and Procedures, No. 401, Ethical Standards (“Policy No. 401”), does 

not adequately address situations where City staff attend meetings that are 

hosted or organized by elected officials, but not open to the general public.  

q. While Weber did invite City staff to a series of private events, the evidence 

shows that—similar to other private events hosted by industry groups and trade 

associations—City staff asked for and accepted invitations, attended, 

presented, engaged in discussions, and answered questions in furtherance of 

their public duties and City business.  Specifically, City staff chose to participate 

in Weber’s events to educate and engage the development community in North 

Valleys, elicit input and feedback on City policies and procedures, exchange 

information, and discuss mutual problems and solutions.  See, e.g., In re Public 

Officer, Comm’n Opinion No. 11-36A (2012).  In light of the public benefit 

derived from City staff’s participation, coupled with the fact that Weber did not 

direct, order, or otherwise compel City staff to attend or participate in any 

meeting, there is insufficient evidence to conclude that Weber used City staff 

to benefit her personal or financial interests, or the personal or financial interest 

of others. 

r. In light of the insufficiency in Policy No. 401, Weber’s commitment to 

transparency and public integrity, and the parties’ desire to clarify and improve 

public officers’ ethical standards of conduct, Weber and the Commission agree 

to enter into this Stipulated Deferral Agreement (“Agreement”). 

  



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  Weber and the Commission agree and 

stipulate as follows: 

a. The Commission hereby dismisses with prejudice all claims that Weber 

violated NRS 281A.400(1) and (2) and claims that she violated NRS 

281A.400(7) by using City letterhead for a private event. 

b. The Commission will defer all claims that Weber otherwise violated NRS 

281A.400(7) by using City staff to benefit her personal or financial interests, or 

the personal or financial interest of others, for a period of 90 days from the 

Effective Date of this Agreement or as may be extended pursuant to the terms 

of this Deferral Agreement (the “Deferral Period”). 

c. Weber agrees to waive applicable time limitations set forth in NRS Chapter 

281A and defer her defense to claims that Weber violated NRS 281A.400(7) 

by using City staff to benefit her personal or financial interests, or the personal 

or financial interest of others for the Deferral Period. 

d. During the Deferral Period, Weber agrees to work with the City Manager, the 

City Attorney’s Office, and the Executive Director or duly authorized designee 

to: (i) update and revise Policy No. 401 to address situations where City staff 

attend meetings that are hosted or organized by elected officials, but not open 

to the general public; and (ii) update and revise Citywide training on Policy No. 

401 and encourage impacted City officials and employees to receive training 

on Policy No. 401. 

e. The Executive Director or duly authorized designee may elect to extend the 

Deferral Period up to 30 days. 

f. All remaining claims are dismissed with prejudice upon the expiration of the 

Deferral Period unless the Executive Director or duly authorized designee 

notifies Weber in writing prior to the expiration of the Deferral Period that (s)he 

objects to the City’s revisions to Policy No. 401, and the grounds for the 

objection. 

  



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

5. ACCEPTANCE: We, the undersigned parties, have read this Stipulated 

Agreement, understand each and every provision therein, and agree to be bound thereby.  

The parties orally agreed to be bound by the terms of this agreement during the regular 

meeting of the Commission on October 20, 2021 (the “Effective Date”). 

 
DATED this   day of         , 2021. DRAFT          
       Bonnie Weber 
 

The above Stipulated Agreement is approved by: 
 
       FOR BONNIE WEBER 
 
 
DATED this   day of          , 2021. DRAFT      
       Paul A. Lipparelli, Esq. 
 
 
DATED this   day of          , 2021. DRAFT      
       Jonathan D. Shipman, Esq. 

Reno City Attorney's Office 
 

 
FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
 
DATED this   day of         , 2021. DRAFT      

       Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. 
       Associate Counsel 

 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
///  



 

PROPOSED 
Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Case No. 20-010C 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Approved as to form by: 
       FOR NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

 
DATED this   day of          , 2021. DRAFT      

       Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 
       Commission Counsel 
 
The above Stipulated Agreement is accepted by the Commission.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
2 Vice-Chair Duffrin and Commissioners Gruenewald and Oscarson participated in the Review Panel 
hearing for Ethics Complaint No. 20-010C and are therefore precluded from participating in this Stipulated 
Agreement pursuant to NRS 281A.220(4). 
3 After consulting with Commission Counsel and in compliance with NRS 281A.420, Commissioner Yen 
has and continues to disclose that she is a partner with the law firm of McDonald Carano and the law firm 
either represents the City of Reno (“City”) or is involved in litigation associated therewith, which litigation 
does not involve the present Complaint. Commissioner Yen has a commitment in a private capacity 
pursuant to NRS 281A.065(5) based upon the business relationship existing between the City and the law 
firm. Given the Subject is an elected official of the City, under both the Ethics Law and the Nevada Code of 
Judicial Conduct, the independence of judgment of a reasonable person in Commissioner Yen’s situation 
would be materially affected by the private commitment and she is abstaining from these proceedings. 

By: DRAFT      By: DRAFT      
 Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM  Thoran Towler, Esq. 
 Chair  Commissioner 

By: DRAFT      By: ABSTAIN     
 Teresa Lowry, Esq.  Amanda Yen, Esq.3 
 Commissioner  Commissioner 

By: DRAFT      
 Damian R. Sheets, Esq. 
 Commissioner 



 
 

 
Notice of Hearing to Consider Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Page 1 of 2 

 

STATE OF NEVADA  
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember, 
City Council, City of Reno,  
State of Nevada, 
 
     Subject. / 

  Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 20-010C 

 

  

NOTICE OF HEARING TO CONSIDER STIPULATED DEFERRAL AGREEMENT 
NRS 281A.745 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, the Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) will hold 

a public meeting to consider a Proposed Stipulated Deferral Agreement regarding the 
allegations submitted in Ethics Complaint No 20-010C at the following time and location: 

 
 When:  Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 9:30 a.m. 
    
 Where: Nevada State Capitol Building 
  Guinn Room 
  101 N. Carson Street, Second Floor 
  Carson City, NV 89701 
    
  and via Zoom at: 

   
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82104238959?pwd=Z2pESHFDU053VkdYbkh6M2l3dTIrZz09 

 
Meeting ID: 821 0423 8959 

Passcode: 935222 
 

Subject has waived the personal notice requirements of NRS 241.033 (Nevada’s 
Open Meeting Law). 

 
 
DATED:       October 12, 2021    /s/ Tracy L. Chase  
 Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 

Commission Counsel 
 
 
  



 
 

 
Notice of Hearing to Consider Stipulated Deferral Agreement 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on this 
day in Carson City, Nevada, I transmitted a true and correct copy of the Notice of Hearing 
to Consider Stipulated Deferral Agreement in Request for Opinion No. 20-010C via 
electronic mail to the Parties as follows: 
 

For the Executive Director: 
 
Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. 
Associate Counsel 
Kari Pedroza, Executive Assistant  
704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204 
Carson City, NV 89703 
 
For the Subject: 
 
Karl S. Hall, Esq. 
Reno City Attorney 
Jonathan D. Shipman, Esq.  
Assistant City Attorney 
Reno City Attorney’s Office 
P.O. Box 1900 
1 E. 1st Street 
Reno, NV 89505 
 
Paul A. Lipparelli, Esq. 
 

 
 
Email:  ebassett@ethics.nv.gov 
 
Email:  k.pedroza@ethics.nv.gov  
 
 
 
 
 
Email:  hallk@reno.gov  
 
Email:  shipmanj@reno.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Email:  paul.lipparelli@gmail.com 
 

  
 
 
DATED:    October 12, 2021          
 Employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics 



Revised 04/03/2019 /PDI (GC)
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 1 of 4

20-010

Submitted Electronically on 02-10-2020



Revised 04/03/2019 /PDI (GC)
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 2 of 4



Revised 04/03/2019 /PDI (GC)
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 3 of 4



Revised 04/03/2019 /PDI (GC)
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 4 of 4



Amended Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 1 of 4 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204  
Carson City, Nevada 89703 

(775) 687-5469 • Fax (775) 687-1279 
ethics.nv.gov 

 
In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember, 
City Council, City of Reno,  
State of Nevada, 
 
                                   Subject. / 

 Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 20-010C                                                                                                   
    Confidential   

 
AMENDED NOTICE OF COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATION 

NRS 281A.720 and NAC 281A.410 
 

(Footnote no. 1 denotes Amendment) 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, pursuant to NRS 281A.710, the Nevada Commission 
on Ethics (“Commission”) received an Ethics Complaint on February 10, 2020, alleging 
that you may have engaged in conduct contrary to certain provisions of Nevada Revised 
Statutes (“NRS”) Chapter 281A, the Nevada Ethics in Government Law (“Ethics Law”). 
The Commission conducted its jurisdictional and evidentiary review and issued its Order 
on Jurisdiction and Investigation on March 26, 2020, which order instructed the Executive 
Director to conduct an investigation regarding your alleged violations of the following 
provisions of the Ethics Law.1  

  
 
NRS 281A.400(1) Seeking or accepting any gift, service, favor, 

employment, engagement, emolument or economic 
opportunity for yourself or person to whom you have a 
commitment in a private capacity which would tend 
improperly to influence a reasonable person in your 
position to depart from the faithful and impartial 
discharge of your public duties. 

 
NRS 281A.400(2) Using your position in government to secure or grant 

unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or 
advantages for yourself, any business entity in which 

 
1 After consulting with Commission Counsel and in compliance with NRS 281A.420, Commissioner Yen is 
disclosing that she is a partner with the law firm of McDonald Carano and the law firm either represents the 
City of Reno (“City”) or is involved in litigation associated therewith, which litigation does not involve the 
present Complaint. Commissioner Yen has a commitment in a private capacity pursuant to NRS 
281A.065(5) based upon the business relationship existing between the City and the law firm. Given the 
Subject is an elected official of the City, under both the Ethics Law and the Nevada Code of Judicial 
Conduct, the independence of judgment of a reasonable person in Commissioner Yen’s situation would be 
materially affected by the private commitment and she is abstaining from these proceedings. 



Amended Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 2 of 4 

you have a significant pecuniary interest, or any person 
to whom you have a commitment in a private capacity. 

 
NRS 281A.400(7) Using governmental time, property, equipment or other 

facility to benefit your significant personal or financial 
interest, or any person to whom you have a 
commitment in a private capacity. 

 
 Pursuant to NRS 281A.720, you may respond to the allegations in writing to the 
Executive Director, Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq., at the Nevada Commission on 
Ethics at 704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204, Carson City, NV 89704.2 The Executive Director 
will present your response as well as a recommendation to a review panel. The review 
panel will determine whether the investigation yields just and sufficient cause for the 
Commission to hold a hearing and render an opinion in the matter, or whether the matter 
will be dismissed. Alternatively, the review panel may approve a deferral agreement 
pursuant to NRS 281A.730. Unless an extension is granted pursuant to NRS 281A.720 
and the waiver of statutory timelines related to the investigation is received by the 
Commission, any response to the allegations must be submitted on or before: 

 
April 28, 2020 

 
A copy of the Ethics Complaint is attached as well as forms for waiving a 

determination by a review panel and/or the time limits for an investigation and 
recommendation to a review panel as set forth in NRS 281A.725 and NRS 281A.730. 
Please see NRS Chapter 281A and NAC Chapter 281A for State law and regulatory 
provisions applicable to administrative matters before the Commission available on the 
Commission’s website at ethics.nv.gov or the Nevada Legislature’s Law Library.  

 
Pursuant to NRS 281A.750 and NAC 281A.410, the Commission has directed that 

the identity of the Requester of the Complaint be maintained as confidential. Accordingly, 
the enclosed Complaint has been redacted. For the purposes of providing a response, 
the complaint alleges that you used accoutrements of your public office for a private event, 
such as indicia of City letterhead to send invitations to a private luncheon, and accepted 
payment for lunches at prior private events from developers who have land-use matters 
before the City of Reno implicating NRS 281A.400(1), (2) and (7). 

 
Except as otherwise provided in NRS Chapter 281A, the Commission and its staff 

will hold its activities in response to this Ethics Complaint (including the fact that it received 
the Ethics Complaint) confidential until a review panel determines whether just and 
sufficient cause exists for the Commission to hold a hearing and render an opinion. 
However, the Commission has no authority to require the Requester to maintain the 
confidentiality of this matter. As a result, information may appear in the public or the 
media. The Commission will not be the source of any public information and will neither 
confirm nor deny the existence of this Ethics Complaint until a review panel has completed 

 
2 The purpose of the response is to provide the Executive Director with any information relevant to the 
matter that the public officer or employee believes may assist the Executive Director in conducting the 
investigation and the review panel in its determination of just and sufficient cause whether the Commission 
should hold a hearing and render an opinion. The public officer or employee is not required in the response 
or in any proceeding before the review panel to assert, claim or raise any objection or defense, in law or 
fact, to the allegations against the public officer or employee and no objection or defense, in law or fact, is 
waived, abandoned or barred by the failure to assert, claim or raise it in the response or in any proceeding 
before the review panel. NRS 281A.720. 



Amended Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 3 of 4 

its review and rendered its determination. You will be provided notice of the review panel’s 
determination. 
 

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please contact me at (775) 687-
5469 or ynevarez@ethics.nv.gov. 
 

Dated this 2nd day of April, 2020. 
 
 
 

 /s/ Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson 
                        Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq. 
 Executive Director  



Amended Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 4 of 4 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I deposited for mailing, via U.S. Postal Service, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, through the State of Nevada mailroom, a true and correct 
copy of the foregoing Amended Notice of Complaint and Investigation, addressed as 
follows: 

 
 

Bonnie Weber 
Councilmember 
Reno City Council 
P.O. Box 1900 
Reno, NV 89505 
 
 

Cert. Mail No.: 9171 9690 0935 0037 6360 02 

Dated:         4/2/20             
 Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 



Amended Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation 
Page 1 of 3 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
  

 

In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember, 
City Council, City of Reno,  
State of Nevada, 
 

                                    Subject. / 

 Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 20-010C 
    Confidential   

 
 

AMENDED ORDER ON JURISDICTION AND INVESTIGATION 
Pursuant to NRS 281A.715 

 
(The added footnote denotes amendment) 

 
The Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) received an Ethics Complaint 

on February 10, 2020 regarding Bonnie Weber (“Subject”), Councilmember, City of Reno. 
On March 26, 2020, pursuant to the requirements of the Nevada Ethics in Government 
Law set forth in NRS Chapter 281A (“Ethics Law”) and NAC 281A.405, the Commission 
conducted its jurisdictional and evidentiary review of the record, including the Ethics 
Complaint, supporting evidence and the recommendation of the Executive Director.1 

 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

 
Based upon sufficient evidence, the Commission directs that the identity of the 

Requester be maintained as confidential pursuant to NRS 281A.750. Further, the 
Commission accepts jurisdiction of this Ethics Complaint and directs the Executive 
Director to conduct an investigation regarding Subject’s alleged violations of the following 
provisions of the Ethics Law for using indicia of government letterhead (government 
property/accoutrements of office) for a personal purpose and seeking or accepting paid 
luncheons from private developers  who may appear before the City Council: 

 
NRS 281A.400(1) Seeking or accepting any gift, service, favor, 

employment, engagement, emolument or economic 
opportunity for herself or person to whom she has a 
commitment in a private capacity which would tend 
improperly to influence a reasonable person in her 
position to depart from the faithful and impartial 
discharge of her public duties. 

 

 
1 After consulting with Commission Counsel and in compliance with NRS 281A.420, Commissioner Yen is 
disclosing that she is a partner with the law firm of McDonald Carano and the law firm either represents the 
City of Reno (“City”) or is involved in litigation associated therewith, which litigation does not involve the 
present Complaint. Commissioner Yen has a commitment in a private capacity pursuant to NRS 
281A.065(5) based upon the business relationship existing between the City and the law firm. Given the 
Subject is an elected official of the City, under both the Ethics Law and the Nevada Code of Judicial 
Conduct, the independence of judgment of a reasonable person in Commissioner Yen’s situation would be 
materially affected by the private commitment and she is abstaining from these proceedings. 



Amended Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation 
Page 2 of 3 

 

NRS 281A.400(2) Using her position in government to secure or grant 
unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or 
advantages for herself, any business entity in which 
she has a significant pecuniary interest, or any person 
to whom she has a commitment in a private capacity. 

 
NRS 281A.400(7) Using governmental time, property, equipment or other 

facility to benefit her significant personal or financial 
interest, or any person to whom she has a commitment 
in a private capacity. 

 
However, the Commission declines to investigate allegations that Subject had a 

conflict of interest in acting or voting on pending matters before the City Council involving 
a developer who is alleged to have deeded a timeshare to Subject in 2009. The Complaint 
lacks sufficient evidence to support that any developer deeded the property to the 
Subject, and the Complaint fails to identify any matter or agenda item that Subject is 
alleged to have acted or voted on that affects such a developer. Accordingly, these 
allegations are dismissed.2 

 
The Commission directs the Executive Director to serve this order with a Notice of 

Complaint and Investigation as required by NRS 281A.720. 
 

DATED this 2nd day of April, 2020. 
      
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
 
/s/ Cheryl A. Lau     
Cheryl A. Lau, Esq. 
Commission Chair 

  

 
2The Complaint lacks sufficient evidence to support the allegations that this conduct implicates NRS 
281A.400(5) and 281A.420(1) and (3), as required by NRS 281A.710(2). Accordingly, these allegations are 
dismissed. 



Amended Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation 
Page 3 of 3 

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I deposited for mailing, via U.S. Postal Service, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, through the State of Nevada mailroom, a true and correct 
copy of the foregoing Amended Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation, addressed 
as follows: 

 
 

Bonnie Weber 
Councilmember 
Reno City Council 
P.O. Box 1900 
Reno, NV 89505 

 
 
 

Certified Mail: 9171 9690 093500037 6360 02 

Dated:        4/2/20           
 Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 

 





 

Review Panel Determination and Referral Order 
Complaint No. 20-010C 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

privileges, preferences or advantages, and improperly using governmental time, property, 
equipment or resources, including use of public staff, to benefit a significant personal or 
pecuniary interest.   
 
Dated this 18th day of August, 2021. 
 
REVIEW PANEL OF THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
 

By:  /s/ Brian Duffrin   By:  /s/ James Oscarson   
 Brian Duffrin  James Oscarson 
 Chair/Presiding Officer 
 

 Commissioner 

By:  /s/ Barbara Gruenewald  
 
 

 Barbara Gruenewald, Esq. 
 Commissioner 

  
 

  



 

Review Panel Determination and Referral Order 
Complaint No. 20-010C 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 
 I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I transmitted a true and correct copy of the foregoing 
REVIEW PANEL DETERMINATION via U.S. Certified Mail and electronic mail addressed 
as follows: 
 

 

Bonnie Weber 
c/o Jonathan D. Shipman, Esq. 
Assistant City Attorney 
Reno City Attorney’s Office 
P.O. Box 1900 
1 E. 1st Street 
Reno, NV 89505 
 
 

 
Email: shipmanj@reno.gov  
 
Certified Mail No.: 9171 9690 0935 0037 6363 23 
 
 

 
 Dated:  8/19/21   

 
  
Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 





10/11/21



Agenda Item 5 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 1 of 7 

 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 
In re Jim Alworth, Councilmember,  
City of Ely, State of Nevada,  
 

               Subject. /                                                              

Ethics Complaint 
                 Case No. 19-095C                                                                                                                                              

 

 
PROPOSED 

STIPULATED AGREEMENT 
 
 1. PURPOSE: This Stipulated Agreement resolves Ethics Complaint Case No. 

19-095C before the Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) concerning Jim 

Alworth (“Alworth”), Councilmember, City of Ely (“City”), Nevada. 

 2. JURISDICTION: At all material times, Alworth served as a City of Ely 

Councilmember and was a public officer as defined in NRS 281A.160. The Ethics in 

Government Law (“Ethics Law”) set forth in NRS Chapter 281A gives the Commission 

jurisdiction over elected and appointed public officers and public employees whose 

conduct is alleged to have violated the provisions of NRS Chapter 281A. See NRS 

281A.280. Accordingly, the Commission has jurisdiction over Alworth in this matter. 

 3. PROCEDURAL HISTORY BEFORE COMMISSION 

a. On November 25, 2019, the Commission issued a Confidential Advisory 

Opinion in Case No. 19-049A (Alworth) in response to an advisory request 

received from Alworth.   

b. On or about October 1, 2019, the Commission received Ethics Complaint No. 

19-095C (“Ethics Complaint”) from a member of the public (“Requester”), 

alleging that Alworth used his public position to secure or grant unwarranted 

privileges or advantages for himself (NRS 281A.400(2)) and attempted to 

benefit a significant personal or pecuniary interest through the influence of a 

subordinate (NRS 281A.400(9)). 

c. On November 18, 2019, the Commission issued its Order on Jurisdiction 

accepting jurisdiction and directing the Executive Director to investigate this 

matter. 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 

d. On November 18, 2019, staff of the Commission issued a Notice to Subject 

under NRS 281A.440(2), stating that the Commission accepted jurisdiction to 

investigate the allegations regarding alleged violations of NRS 281A.400(2) 

and (9) and whether Alworth acted in contravention of a confidential written 

opinion written opinion issued to Alworth in violation of NRS 281A.685. Alworth 

was provided an opportunity to provide a written response to the Ethics 

Complaint.  

e. On or about December 9, 2019, Alworth provided a response to the Ethics 

Complaint. 

f. Alworth was served with a Notice of Additional Issues and Facts (“Notice”) on 

July 15, 2021, providing Alworth with notice that the Commission’s investigation 

had identified additional issues and facts concerning alleged violations of NRS 

281A.420(1) and (3) for failing to disclose a conflict of interest and abstain from 

voting on matters during Ely City Council meetings. Alworth was provided an 

opportunity to provide a written response to the Notice. 

g. On July 26, 2021, Alworth provided a response to the Notice. 

h. The Executive Director presented a recommendation on August 18, 2021 

relating to just and sufficient cause to a three-member review panel pursuant 

to NRS 281A.720. 

i. A Panel Determination issued on August 18, 2021: 

1) Determined that credible evidence supported just and sufficient cause 

for the Commission to render an opinion in the matter regarding the 

alleged violations of NRS 281A.400(2) and (9), NRS 281A.420(1) and 

(3) and NRS 281A.685 related to Alworth’s conduct associated with his 

participation in Ely City Council matters regarding the Ely Fire 

Department and Ely Volunteer Fire Department; and 

2) Referred the matter to the Commission for further proceedings. 

j. In lieu of an adjudicatory hearing before the Commission, Alworth and the 

Commission now enter into this Stipulated Agreement. 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 4. STIPULATED FACTS: At all material times, the following facts were 

relevant to this matter:1  

a. Alworth is a member of the Ely City Council and a public officer pursuant to 

NRS 281A.160. 

b. Alworth was previously a 36-year active member of the Ely Volunteer Fire 

Department (“EVFD”).  

c. On June 10, 2019, Alworth requested an advisory opinion from the 

Commission regarding his disclosure and abstention obligations under the 

Ethics Law as a councilmember associated with his continuing volunteer 

affiliation with the EVFD.2 

d. As a volunteer for the EVFD, Alworth has been provided stipends, insurance 

coverage, training, and other benefits for his service.  Alworth received his fire 

and EMT training from the Ely Fire Department (“EFD”), attended conferences 

and additional training paid for by the EVFD, and when he was volunteering, 

he would receive a small stipend from the City of Ely for services provided to 

the EFD. 

e. Alworth indicated in his request for an advisory opinion that as a member of 

the Ely City Council he anticipated considering ordinances, contracts (including 

collective bargaining agreements for career staff), budgets, administrative and 

personnel matters and other matters pertaining to the EVFD and EFD. 

f. The Commission advised and Alworth specifically recognized in his request for 

the advisory opinion that he must disclose and abstain pursuant to NRS 

281A.420 on any personnel matters affecting his status and working conditions 

as a volunteer. 

g. Alworth changed to inactive status with EVFD in November 2019. Inactive 

members are not required to attend EVFD meetings or trainings and are not 

subject to regular call-out requirements but continue to enjoy all the privileges 

 
1 Stipulated Facts do not constitute part of the “Investigative File” as that term is defined by NRS 281A.775. 
All statutory and common law protections afforded to the Investigative File shall remain and are not affected 
by this Stipulated Agreement. 
2 Alworth hereby voluntarily waives the confidentiality of the Advisory Opinion issued by the Commission 
in Case No. 19-049A (Alworth) pursuant to NRS 281A.685(1)(b). 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 4 of 7 

 

 

of EVFD membership and can still be called out to assist EFD in the event of 

large fires or other events that require additional personnel. 

h. At subsequent City Council meetings, Alworth discussed and/or voted on 

matters relating to the EFD and/or the EVFD without properly disclosing his 

affiliation, conflict of interest or recusing himself from participation on the 

following dates: January 9, 2020, June 25, 2020, July 23, 2020, and August 

13, 2020. 

5. TERMS / CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:  Based on the foregoing, Alworth and 

the Commission agree as follows: 

a. Each of the stipulated facts enumerated in Section 4 of this Stipulated 

Agreement is agreed to by the parties.   

b. Alworth, as a public officer, was required to commit himself to avoid conflicts 

between his private interests and those of the general public whom he served. 

NRS 281A.020.  

c. A public officer must sufficiently disclose his pecuniary interest or commitment 

in a private capacity to the interest of another person that is reasonably affected 

by an official matter (NRS 281A.420(1)).  Alworth violated NRS 281A.420(1) by 

failing to publicly disclose the full nature and extent of his pecuniary interests 

in presenting and participating in matters related to the EFD and EVFD.  See 

In re Murnane, Comm’n Op. No. 15-45A (2016) (Appointed public officer must 

disclose information regarding a conflict that is sufficient to inform the public 

body and public attending a public meeting), citing In re Buck, Comm’n Op. No. 

11-63C (2011) (A public officer must disclose the conflict “at the time the matter 

is considered” and relying on a prior disclosure fails to properly comply with 

NRS 281A.420(1)). 

d. Allegations that Alworth violated NRS 281A.400(2) and (9) and NRS 281A.685 

are hereby dismissed for lack of sufficient evidence to support a violation by a 

preponderance of the evidence. 

e. Alworth now understands that he must disclose and abstain pursuant to NRS 

281A.420 each time any matter comes before the Ely City Council regarding 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 

the EFD and/or the EVFD despite Alworth’s transfer to inactive status with the 

EVFD.   

f. Alworth’s actions constitute a single course of conduct resulting in one violation 

of the Ethics Law, implicating the provisions of NRS 281A.420(1) and (3), as 

interpreted and applied in accordance with the provisions of NRS 281A.020(1). 

g. Based upon the consideration and application of the statutory mitigating criteria 

set forth in NRS 281A.775, the Commission concludes that Alworth’s violation 

in this case should not be deemed a willful violation pursuant to NRS 281A.170 

and the imposition of a civil penalty is not appropriate for the following reasons: 

1) Alworth has not previously been the subject of any violation of the Ethics 

Law. 

2) Alworth properly completed and filed his Acknowledgement of Statutory 

Ethical Standards as required by NRS 281A.500(3). 

3) Alworth has completed Ethics training and has encouraged other City 

public officials and employees to complete Ethics training. Alworth did not 

receive any financial benefit as a result of his conduct. 

4) The City Council Meeting Minutes reflect Alworth made partial, if improper, 

disclosures during many of the identified meetings. 

5) Alworth has been diligent to cooperate with and participate in the 

Commission’s investigation and resolution of this matter. 

6) Alworth was not aware that his change to inactive status with the EVFD 

did not change his disclosure and abstention requirements on City Council 

matters pertaining to the EVFD and EFD.  

h. This Stipulated Agreement depends on and applies only to the specific facts, 

circumstances and law related to the Ethics Complaint now before the 

Commission. Any facts or circumstances that may come to light after its entry 

that are in addition to or differ from those contained herein may create a 

different resolution of this matter. 

i. This agreement is intended to apply to and resolve only this specific proceeding 

before the Commission and is not intended to be applicable to or create any 

admission of liability for any other proceeding, including administrative, civil, or 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

criminal, regarding Alworth. If the Commission rejects this Stipulated 

Agreement, none of the provisions herein shall be considered by the 

Commission or be admissible as evidence in a hearing on the merits in this 

matter. 

6. WAIVER 

a. Alworth knowingly and voluntarily waives his right to a hearing before the full 

Commission on the allegations in Ethics Complaint Case No. 19-095C and all 

rights he may be accorded with regard to this matter pursuant to NRS Chapter 

281A, the regulations of the Commission (NAC Chapter 281A), the Nevada 

Administrative Procedures Act (NRS Chapter 233B) and any other applicable 

provisions of law.  

b. Alworth knowingly and voluntarily waives his right to any judicial review of this 

matter as provided in NRS 281A, NRS 233B or any other applicable provisions 

of law. 

7. ACCEPTANCE: We, the undersigned parties, have read this Stipulated 

Agreement, understand each and every provision therein, and agree to be bound thereby.  

The parties orally agreed to be bound by the terms of this agreement during the regular 

meeting of the Commission on October 20, 2021.3 

 
DATED this   day of         , 2021. DRAFT          
       Jim Alworth 
 

The above Stipulated Agreement is approved by: 
 

FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
 
DATED this   day of         , 2021. DRAFT      

       Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. 
       Associate Counsel 

 
  

 
3 Subject waived any right to receive written notice pursuant to NRS 241.033 of the time and place of the 
Commission’s meeting to consider his character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical 
or mental health. 
 



 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 19-095C 
Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Approved as to form by: 
       FOR NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

 
DATED this   day of          , 2021. DRAFT      

       Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 
       Commission Counsel 
 
The above Stipulated Agreement is accepted by the Commission:4 
 

 
4 Vice-Chair Duffrin and Commissioners Gruenewald and Oscarson participated in the Review Panel 
hearing for Ethics Complaint No. 19-095C and are therefore precluded from participating in this Stipulated 
Agreement pursuant to NRS 281A.220(4) 

By: DRAFT      By: DRAFT      
 Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM  Thoran Towler, Esq. 
 Chair  Commissioner 

By: DRAFT      By: DRAFT      
 Teresa Lowry, Esq.  Amanda Yen, Esq. 

 Commissioner  Commissioner 

By: DRAFT      
 Damian R. Sheets, Esq. 
 Commissioner 
 



 
 

 
Notice of Hearing to Consider Stipulated Agreement 

Page 1 of 2 

 

STATE OF NEVADA  
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

In re Jim Alworth, Councilmember,  
City of Ely, State of Nevada, 
 
              Subject. / 

 Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 19-095C 

 

  

NOTICE OF HEARING TO CONSIDER STIPULATED AGREEMENT 
NRS 281A.745 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, the Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) will hold 

a public meeting to consider a Proposed Stipulated Agreement regarding the allegations 
submitted in Ethics Complaint No 19-095C at the following time and location: 

 
 When:  Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 9:30 a.m. 
    
 Where: Nevada State Capitol Building 
  Guinn Room 
  101 N. Carson Street, Second Floor 
  Carson City, NV 89701 
    
  and via Zoom at: 

   
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82104238959?pwd=Z2pESHFDU053VkdYbkh6M2l3dTIrZz09 

 
Meeting ID: 821 0423 8959 

Passcode: 935222 
 

Subject has waived the personal notice requirements of NRS 241.033 (Nevada’s 
Open Meeting Law). If the Proposed Stipulated Agreement is approved, it will serve as the 
final written opinion in this matter pursuant to NRS 281A.135. 
 
 
DATED:       October 12, 2021    /s/ Tracy L. Chase  
 Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 

Commission Counsel 
  



 
 

 
Notice of Hearing to Consider Stipulated Agreement 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on this 
day in Carson City, Nevada, I transmitted a true and correct copy of the Notice of Hearing 
to Consider Stipulated Agreement in Request for Opinion No. 19-095C via electronic 
mail to the Parties as follows: 
 
 

For the Executive Director 
Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. 
Associate Counsel 
Kari Pedroza, Executive Assistant  
704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204 
Carson City, NV 89703 
 
Jim Alworth 
Councilmember Seat 4 
City of Ely 
P.O. Box 151291 
Ely, Nevada 89315 

 
Email:  ebassett@ethics.nv.gov 
 
Email:  k.pedroza@ethics.nv.gov  
 
 
 
Email:  CouncilSeat4@cityofelynv.gov  
 

  
 
 
DATED:    October 12, 2021          
 Employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics 



Revised 09/22/17  VMC 
Nevada Commission on Ethics 2017 

Ethics Complaint 

Page 1 of 4 

NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

ETHICS COMPLAINT 
Sec. 3.6 to 13, inclusive, of S.B. 84 (2017) 

1. Provide the following information for the public officer or employee you allege violated the Nevada Ethics in
Government Law, NRS Chapter 281A. (If you allege that more than one public officer or employee has
violated the law, use a separate form for each individual.)

NAME: 
(Last, First) 

TITLE OF PUBLIC 
OFFICE: 
(Position) 

PUBLIC ENTITY: 
(Name of the entity employing  
this position) 

ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, 
ZIP CODE 

TELEPHONE: 
Work: Other: (Home, cell) 

E-MAIL: 

2. Describe in specific detail the public officer’s or employee’s conduct that you allege violated NRS Chapter
281A. (Include specific facts and circumstances to support your allegation: times, places, and the name
and position of each person involved.)

Check here if additional pages are attached. 

3. Is the alleged conduct the subject of any action or matter currently pending before another administrative or judicial
body? If yes, describe:

Nevada Commission on Ethics

Case No. ______
For Official Use Only

19-095C

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-281A.html#NRS281ASec440
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-281A.html


Revised 09/22/17  VMC 
Nevada Commission on Ethics 2017 

Ethics Complaint 

Page 2 of 4 

4. NRS Chapter 281A requires public officers and employees to hold public office as a public trust and avoid conflicts
between public duties and private interests. (NRS 281A.020)  What provisions of NRS Chapter 281A are relevant
to the conduct alleged? Please check all that apply.

*Pursuant to NRS 281A.065, a public officer or employee has a commitment in a private capacity to the following persons:

1. Spouse; domestic partner
2. Household member
3. Family member within 3rd degree of consanguinity
4. Employer or spouse’s/domestic partner’s employer
5. Substantial and continuing business relationship, i.e. partner or associate
6. Substantially similar relationships

Statute Statutory Summary: 

NRS 281A.400(1) 

Seeking or accepting any gift, service, favor, employment, engagement, emolument or economic opportunity for himself or person 
to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity which would tend improperly to influence a reasonable person in his position 
to depart from the faithful and impartial discharge of his public duties. 

NRS 281A.400(2) 

Using his position in government to secure or grant unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or advantages for himself, 
any business entity in which he has a significant pecuniary interest, or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private 
capacity. 

NRS 281A.400(3) 

Participating as an agent of government in the negotiation or execution of a contract between the government and himself, and 
any business entity in which he has a significant pecuniary interest or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private 
capacity. 

NRS 281A.400(4) 

Accepting any salary, retainer, augmentation, expense allowance or other compensation from any private source for himself or 
any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity for the performance of his duties as a public officer or 
employee. 

NRS 281A.400(5) 
Acquiring, through his public duties or relationships, any information which by law or practice is not at the time available 
to people generally, and using the information to further the pecuniary interests of himself or any other person or business entity. 

NRS 281A.400(6) 
Suppressing any governmental report or other document because it might tend to affect unfavorably his pecuniary interests, 
or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity. 

NRS 281A.400(7) 
Using governmental time, property, equipment or other facility to benefit his significant personal or financial interest, or any 

person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity.  (Some exceptions apply). 

NRS 281A.400(8) 

A State Legislator using governmental time, property, equipment or other facility for a nongovernmental purpose or for the private 

benefit of himself or any other person, or requiring or authorizing a legislative employee, while on duty, to perform personal services 

or assist in a private activity. (Some exceptions apply). 

NRS 281A.400(9) 
Attempting to benefit his personal or financial interest or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity through 
the influence of a subordinate. 

NRS 281A.400(10) 
Seeking other employment or contracts for himself or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity through the 
use of his official position. 

NRS 281A.410 

Representing or counseling a private person for compensation on an issue pending before a public agency while employed, or 
within 1 year after leaving the service of a public agency, including before any state agency of the Executive or Legislative 
Department.  (State and local legislators and part-time public officers and employees may represent/counsel private persons before 
agencies they do not serve, except local legislators may not represent/counsel private persons before other local agencies within 
the same county.) 

NRS 281A.420(1) 
Failing to sufficiently disclose his acceptance of a gift or loan, pecuniary interest, or commitment in a private capacity to the interest 
of another person that is reasonably affected by an official matter. 

NRS 281A.420(3) 
Failing to abstain from acting on an official matter which is materially affected by his acceptance of a gift or loan, pecuniary interest, 
or commitment in a private capacity to the interest of another person. 

NRS 281A.430 
Negotiating, bidding on or entering into a government contract in which he has a significant pecuniary interest. (some exceptions 
apply). 

NRS 281A.500 Failing to file or timely file a Nevada Acknowledgement of Ethical Standards for Public Officers form. 

NRS 281A.510 Accepting or receiving an improper honorarium. 

NRS 281A.520 
Requesting or otherwise causing a governmental entity to incur an expense or make an expenditure to support or oppose a ballot 
question or candidate during the relevant timeframe. 

NRS 281A.550 
Negotiating or accepting employment from a business or industry regulated by or contracted with former public agency within one 
year after leaving the service of the agency.  (Failing to honor the applicable "cooling off" period after leaving public service). 



Revised 09/22/17  VMC 
Nevada Commission on Ethics 2017 

Ethics Complaint 

Page 3 of 4 

5. YOU MUST SUBMIT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT YOUR ALLEGATIONS.

Attach all documents or items you believe support your allegations. NAC 281A.400(6) defines “evidence which supports the

allegation” as “any reliable and competent form of proof provided by witnesses, public and private records, audio or visual

recordings, documents, exhibits, concrete objects, and such forms of proof that support a reasonable belief in the truth of the

allegation.”  A newspaper article or other media report will not support your allegations if it is offered by itself, but may be included

with evidence that corroborates the article or report.

State the total number of additional pages attached (including evidence) _________. 

6. Witnesses: Identify all persons who have knowledge of the facts and circumstances you have described, as

well as the nature of the testimony the person will provide. Check here if additional pages are attached.

NAME and TITLE: 
(Person #1) 

ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, ZIP 

TELEPHONE: 
Work: Other: (Home, cell) 

E-MAIL: 

NATURE OF 
TESTIMONY: 

NAME and TITLE: 
(Person #2) 

ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, ZIP 

TELEPHONE: 
Work: Other: (Home, cell) 

E-MAIL: 

NATURE OF 
TESTIMONY: 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-281.html%23NAC281Sec194


Revised 09/22/17  VMC 
Nevada Commission on Ethics 2017 

Ethics Complaint 

Page 4 of 4 

7. REQUESTER INFORMATION:

YOUR NAME: 

YOUR 
ADDRESS: 

CITY, STATE, ZIP: 

YOUR 
TELEPHONE: 

Day: Evening: E-MAIL: 

*NOTE*: Your identity as the Requester and a copy of this Complaint will be provided to the Subject if the
Commission accepts jurisdiction of the matter, unless: 

Pursuant to Sec. 8 of S.B. 84, I request that my identity as the requester of this Ethics Complaint remain 
confidential because (please check appropriate box):  

I am a public officer or employee who works for the same public body, agency or employer as 
the subject of this Ethics Complaint.  Provide evidence of your employment with the same public body, 
agency or employer. 

OR 

I can show a reasonable likelihood that disclosure of my identity will subject me or a member 
of my household to a bona fide threat of physical force or violence.  Please describe the facts and 
circumstances which support a reasonable likelihood of a bona fide threat of physical force or violence 
below.   

The Commission may decline to maintain the confidentiality of your identity as the Requester for lack of 
sufficient evidence of your employment status with the same public body, agency or employer, or proof of a 
bonafide threat of physical harm.  

If the Commission declines to maintain my confidentiality, I wish to: 

Withdraw my Complaint OR 

Submit the Complaint understanding that the Subject will know my identity as the Requester. 

By my signature below, I affirm that the facts set forth in this document and all of its attachments are 
true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I am willing to provide sworn testimony 
regarding these allegations.  I acknowledge that this Ethics Complaint, the materials submitted in support 
of the allegations, and the Commission’s investigation are confidential unless and until the Commission’s 
Review Panel renders a determination. The Commission’s Investigatory File remains confidential pursuant to 
Sec. 9 of S.B. 84. 

Signature: Date: 

Print Name: 
You must submit this form bearing your signature to: 

Executive Director 
Nevada Commission on Ethics 

704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204 

Carson City, Nevada 89703 

Or through the Commission’s website: www.ethics.nv.gov 

http://www.ethics.nv.gov/








Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 1 of 3 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204  

Carson City, Nevada 89703 

 (775) 687-5469 • Fax (775) 687-1279 

ethics.nv.gov 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATION 

NRS 281A.720 and NAC 281A.4101 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Nevada Commission on Ethics 
(“Commission”) received an Ethics Complaint on October 1, 2019, alleging that you may 
have engaged in conduct contrary to certain provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes 
(“NRS”) Chapter 281A, the Nevada Ethics in Government Law (“Ethics Law”). The 
Commission conducted its jurisdictional and evidentiary review and issued its Order on 
Jurisdiction and Investigation on November 18, 2019, which order instructed the 
Executive Director to conduct an investigation regarding your alleged violations of the 
following provisions of the Ethics Law: 

 
NRS 281A.400(2) Using your position in government to secure or grant 

unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or 
advantages for yourself, any business entity in which you 
have a significant pecuniary interest, or any person to whom 
you have a commitment in a private capacity. 

 
NRS 281A.400(9) Attempting to benefit your personal or financial interest or 

any person to whom you have a commitment in a private 
capacity through the influence of a subordinate. 

 
The Commission also directed the Executive Director to provide you with a copy 

of the confidential written opinion issued in In re Alworth, Comm’n Op. No. 19-049A (2019) 
(“Advisory Opinion”) and request that you provide a response to whether: (1) you acted 
in contravention of the advice rendered in the Advisory Opinion; and (2) the Commission 
should declare the request for opinion to be public as a result of your conduct. See NRS 
281A.685(3)(a).  

 
Pursuant to NRS 281A.720, you may respond to the allegations and whether you 

acted in contravention of the Advisory Opinion in writing to the Executive Director, Yvonne 
M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq., at the Nevada Commission on Ethics at 704 W. Nye Lane, 
Suite 204, Carson City, NV 89704.2 The Executive Director will present your response as 

                                
1 See Approved Regulation of the Commission on Ethics, LCB File No. R108-18, effective August 30, 2018. 
2 The purpose of the response is to provide the Executive Director with any information relevant to the 
matter that the public officer or employee believes may assist the Executive Director in conducting the 
investigation and the review panel in its determination of just and sufficient cause whether the Commission 
should hold a hearing and render an opinion. The public officer or employee is not required in the response 

In re Jim Alworth, Councilmember, 
City of Ely, State of Nevada,  
 
                                 Subject. / 

  Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 19-095C 
     Confidential                                                                                                                                            

 



Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 2 of 3 

well as a recommendation to a review panel. The review panel will determine whether the 
investigation yields just and sufficient cause for the Commission to hold a hearing and 
render an opinion in the matter, or whether the matter will be dismissed. Alternatively, the 
review panel may approve a deferral agreement pursuant to NRS 281A.730.  

 
Unless an extension is granted pursuant to NRS 281A.720 and the waiver of 

statutory timelines related to the investigation is received by the Commission, any 
response to the allegations must be submitted on or before: 

 
December 23, 2019 

 
A copy of the Ethics Complaint and the Advisory Opinion are attached, as well as 

forms for waiving the time limits set forth in NRS 281A.725, NRS 281A.730, and NRS 
281A.745. Please see NRS Chapter 281A and NAC Chapter 281A for State law and 
regulatory provisions applicable to administrative matters before the Commission 
available on the Commission’s website at ethics.nv.gov or the Nevada Legislature’s Law 
Library. 

 
You are entitled to be represented by an attorney of your selection. Please notify 

the Commission if you will be represented by counsel. 
 
Except as otherwise provided in NRS Chapter 281A, the Commission and its staff 

will hold its activities in response to this Ethics Complaint (including the fact that it received 
the Ethics Complaint) confidential until a review panel determines whether just and 
sufficient cause exists for the Commission to hold a hearing and render an opinion. 
However, the Commission has no authority to require the Requester to maintain the 
confidentiality of this matter. As a result, information may appear in the public or the 
media. The Commission will not be the source of any public information and will neither 
confirm nor deny the existence of this Ethics Complaint until a review panel has completed 
its review and rendered its determination. You will be provided notice of the review panel’s 
determination. 
 

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please contact me at (775) 687-
5469 or ynevarez@ethics.nv.gov. 
 

Dated this 18th day of    November  , 2019. 
 
 
 
 /s/ Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson 
                        Yvonne M. Nevarez-Goodson, Esq. 
 Executive Director 
 
 
 
  

                                
or in any proceeding before the review panel to assert, claim or raise any objection or defense, in law or 
fact, to the allegations against the public officer or employee and no objection or defense, in law or fact, is 
waived, abandoned or barred by the failure to assert, claim or raise it in the response or in any proceeding 
before the review panel. NRS 281A.720. 



Notice of Complaint and Investigation 
Page 3 of 3 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I deposited for mailing, via U.S. Postal Service, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, through the State of Nevada mailroom, and transmitted via 
email, a true and correct copy of the foregoing Notice of Complaint and Investigation, 
addressed as follows: 

 
 

Jim Alworth 
City of Ely 
501 Mill Street 
Ely, Nevada 89301 
 
 

Cert. Mail No.: 9171 9690 0935 0037 6385 25   
 

Dated:     11/18/19           
       Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 



Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation 
Page 1 of 2 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

  

 

In re Jim Alworth, Councilmember, 
City of Ely, State of Nevada,  
 
                                 Subject. / 

  Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 19-095C 
     Confidential                                                                                                                                            

 
 

ORDER ON JURISDICTION AND INVESTIGATION 
Pursuant to NRS 281A.715 

 
The Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) received an Ethics Complaint 

(“Complaint”) on October 1, 2019, regarding Jim Alworth (“Subject”), Councilmember, City 
of Ely, State of Nevada, alleging a violation of the Nevada Ethics in Government Law set 
forth in NRS Chapter 281A (“Ethics Law”).  On November 18, 2019, pursuant to the Ethics 
Law and NAC 281A.400, the Commission conducted its jurisdictional and evidentiary 
review of the record, including the Complaint, supporting evidence and the 
recommendation of the Executive Director.1   

 
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 
 
The Commission accepts jurisdiction of this Ethics Complaint and directs the 

Executive Director to conduct an investigation regarding the Subject’s alleged violations 
of the following provisions of the Ethics Law: 

 
NRS 281A.400(2) Using his position in government to secure or grant 

unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or 
advantages for himself, any business entity in which he has a 
significant pecuniary interest, or any person to whom he has 
a commitment in a private capacity.  

 
NRS 281A.400(9) Attempting to benefit his personal or financial interest or any 

person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity 
through the influence of a subordinate. 

 
 The Commission directs the Executive Director to serve this Order with a Notice 
of Complaint and Investigation as required by NRS 281A.720.  
 

DATED this 18th day of November, 2019. 
 
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 
 
/s/ Cheryl A. Lau      
Cheryl A. Lau, Esq. 
Commission Chair 

  

                                                 
1 NRS 281A.710(2) requires an ethics complaint be submitted with sufficient evidence to support the 
allegations as that term is defined by Section 11 of Approved Regulation of the Commission on Ethics, 
LCB File No. R108-18, effective August 30, 2018. 



Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation 
Page 2 of 2 

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I deposited for mailing, via U.S. Postal Service, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, through the State of Nevada mailroom, a true and correct 
copy of the foregoing Order on Jurisdiction and Investigation, addressed as follows: 

 
 

Jim Alworth 
Member 
Ely City Council 
802 Ave. I 
Ely, Nevada 89301 

 
 
 

Cert. Mail No.: 9171 9690 0935 0037 6385 25   
 

Dated:     11/18/19           
 Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 

 



Notice of Additional Issues and Facts 
Case No. 19-095C                                                                                                   

Page 1 of 3 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204  

Carson City, Nevada 89703 

(775) 687-5469 • Fax (775) 687-1279 

ethics.nv.gov 

 
In re Jim Alworth,  
Councilmember, City of Ely, 
State of Nevada, 
 
                            Subject. / 

 Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 19-095C                                                                                                   
    Confidential   

 
NOTICE OF ADDITIONAL ISSUES AND FACTS 

Pursuant to NRS 281A.720, NAC 281A.410 and NAC 281A.415 
 

In addition to the Notice to Subject provided to Subject Jim Alworth on November 
18, 2019, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Nevada Commission on Ethics 
(“Commission”) has identified relevant issues and facts beyond those presented in the 
original Ethics Complaint. Accordingly, Subject is hereby notified that the Commission’s 
investigation has identified additional issues and facts concerning alleged violations of 
NRS 281A.420(1) and (3) for failing to disclose a conflict of interest regarding the Ely Fire 
Department and the Ely Volunteer Fire Department and failing to abstain from voting on 
matters concerning the Ely Fire Department and the Ely Volunteer Fire Department during 
Ely City Council meetings on January 9, 2020, June 25, 2020 (closed session), July 23, 
2020, and August 13, 2020. 

 
Pursuant to NAC 281A.415 and NRS 281A.720, Subject may respond to these 

additional issues and facts in writing to the Commission addressed to 704 W. Nye Lane, 
Suite 204, Carson City, NV 89704, or via Email to my attention at 
davidhall@ethics.nv.gov,  not later than 30 days after receipt of this notice. A lack of 
response is not deemed an admission that the allegations are true. 

 
Except as otherwise provided in NRS Chapter 281A, the Commission and its staff 

will hold its activities in response to the Ethics Complaint (including the fact that it received 
the Ethics Complaint) confidential until a review panel determines whether just and 
sufficient cause exists for the Commission to hold a hearing and render an opinion. 
However, the Commission has no authority to require the Requester to maintain the 
confidentiality of this matter. As a result, information may appear in the public or the 
media. The Commission will not be the source of any public information and will neither 
confirm nor deny the existence of this Ethics Complaint until a review panel has completed 
its review and rendered its determination. You will be provided notice of the review panel’s 
determination. 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
///  



Notice of Additional Issues and Facts 
Case No. 19-095C                                                                                                   

Page 2 of 3 

If you have any questions regarding this notice, please contact me at (775) 687-
5469 or davidhall@ethics.nv.gov. 
 

Dated this 15th day of July, 2021. 
 
 
 

       /s/ David R. Hall    
       David R. Hall, Esq.  

       Executive Director 
 
 
 
  



Notice of Additional Issues and Facts 
Case No. 19-095C                                                                                                   

Page 3 of 3 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I deposited for mailing, via U.S. Postal Service, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, through the State of Nevada mailroom, and transmitted via 
email, a true and correct copy of the foregoing Notice of Additional Facts and Issues, 
addressed as follows: 

 
 

Jim Alworth 
Councilmember Seat 4 
City of Ely 
P.O. Box 151291 
Ely, Nevada 89315 
jalworth@elycity.com 
 
 

 

Cert. Mail No.: 9171 9690 0935 0037 6389 90 

Dated:     7/15/21           
       Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 





 

Review Panel Determination and Referral Order 
Complaint No. 19-095C 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

   
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

By:  /s/ Brian Duffrin     By:  /s/ James Oscarson    
 Brian Duffrin  James Oscarson 
 Vice-Chair/Presiding Officer 
 

 Commissioner 

By:  /s/ Barbara Gruenewald    
 
 

 Barbara Gruenewald, Esq. 
 Commissioner 

  
 

 
 
  

waived the confidentiality provisions of NRS 281A.685(1) by acting in contravention of the 
Advisory Opinion.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

  Based upon the just and sufficient cause determination, the Review Panel refers 
Ethics  Complaint  No. 19-095C to  the  Commission  for  further  proceedings,  which  may 
include rendering an opinion on whether Alworth violated NRS 281A.400(2) and (9) and 
NRS 281A.420(1) and (3) by attempting to secure unwarranted privileges and failing to 
disclose and abstain pursuant to NRS 281A.420 on any personnel matters before the Ely 
City Council for both paid and volunteer staff of the Ely Fire Department and Ely Volunteer 
Fire Department. In addition, the Review Panel finds just and sufficient cause to refer to 
the Commission the determination of whether Alworth waived the confidentiality 
provisions of NRS 281A.685 by acting in contravention of the Advisory Opinion.

Dated this 18th day of August, 2021.

REVIEW PANEL OF THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS



 

Review Panel Determination and Referral Order 
Complaint No. 19-095C 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
 
 I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on 
this day in Carson City, Nevada, I deposited a true and correct copy of the foregoing 
REVIEW PANEL DETERMINATION with the Nevada State Mail Room to be sent via 
U.S. Certified Mail addressed as follows: 
 

 

Jim Alworth 
Councilmember Seat 4 
City of Ely 
P.O. Box 151291 
Ely, Nevada 89315 
CouncilSeat4@cityofelynv.gov  
 
 

Certified Mail No.: 9171 9690 0935 0037 6363 30 

 
 Dated:  8/19/21   

 
  
Employee, Nevada Commission on Ethics 







Agenda Item 6 



PROPOSED 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 20-063C 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 
In re Danielle Milam, Planning and 
Development Director, Las Vegas-Clark  
County Library District, State of Nevada,  
 
                                                               Subject. / 

Ethics Complaint 
Case No. 20-063C                                                                                                                                              

 

 

PROPOSED 
STIPULATED AGREEMENT 

 

 1. PURPOSE: This Stipulated Agreement resolves Ethics Complaint Case No. 

20-063C before the Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) concerning Danielle 

Milam (“Milam”), Planning and Development Director, Las Vegas-Clark County Library 

District, Nevada. 

 2. JURISDICTION: At all material times, Milam was a public employee as 

defined in NRS 281A.150. The Ethics in Government Law (“Ethics Law”) set forth in NRS 

Chapter 281A gives the Commission jurisdiction over elected and appointed public 

officers and public employees whose conduct is alleged to have violated the provisions 

of NRS Chapter 281A. See NRS 281A.280. Accordingly, the Commission has jurisdiction 

over Milam in this matter. 

 3. PROCEDURAL HISTORY BEFORE COMMISSION 

a. On or about September 8, 2020, the Commission received Ethics Complaint 

No. 20-063C (“Ethics Complaint”) from an employee of the District and member 

of the public, who requested that his/her identity remain confidential 

(“Requester”).1 

b. On October 26, 2020, the Commission issued its Order on Jurisdiction 

accepting jurisdiction and directing the Commission’s Executive Director to 

investigate Milam’s alleged violations of NRS 281A 400(1), (2) and (10) and 

NRS 281A.420(1). 

 
1 The identity of the Requester has been kept confidential pursuant to NRS 281A.750. 
 



PROPOSED 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 20-063C 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

c. On or about November 30, 2020, Milam submitted her written response to the 

Ethics Complaint through her legal counsel, Mitchell Stipp, Esq., to the 

Commission’s Executive Director, disputing the allegations contained in the 

Ethics Complaint and providing an acknowledgement from Milam’s supervisor, 

Dr. Ronald Heezen, that he was informed of and consented to Milam’s private 

consulting relationship with the District vendor at issue in the Ethics Complaint.   

d. A Panel Determination was issued by a Review Panel of the Commission 

(“Review Panel”) on January 19, 2021, which determined that credible 

evidence supported just and sufficient cause for the Commission to render an 

opinion regarding the allegations.  Rather than refer the matter to the 

Commission for further proceedings, the Review Panel provided the 

Commission’s Executive Director and Milam an opportunity to resolve the 

Ethics Complaint through a Deferral Agreement (as defined in NRS 281A.082). 

e. After good faith efforts, the Commission’s Executive Director and Milam failed 

to enter into a Deferral Agreement which was accepted by the Review Panel.  

As a result, and with the agreement of Milam, the Review Panel referred the 

matter to the Commission for further proceedings. 

f. Milam and the Commission now enter into this Stipulated Agreement to resolve 

the Ethics Complaint. 

4. TERMS / CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:  Milam and the Commission agree as 

follows: 

a. After further investigation, the allegations that Milam violated NRS 281A 400(1), 

(2) and (10) and NRS 281A.420(1) are hereby dismissed for lack of evidence 

to support such violations by a preponderance of the evidence, which standard 

of proof is set forth in NRS 281A.790(9). 

b. This Stipulated Agreement depends on and applies only to the specific facts, 

circumstances and law related to the Ethics Complaint now before the 

Commission. Any facts or circumstances that may come to light after its entry 

that are in addition to or differ from those contained herein may create a 

different resolution of this matter. 



PROPOSED 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 20-063C 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

c. This Stipulated Agreement is intended to apply to and resolve only this specific 

proceeding before the Commission and is not intended to be applicable to or 

create any liability for any other proceeding, including administrative, civil, or 

criminal, regarding Milam. If the Commission rejects this Stipulated Agreement, 

none of the provisions herein shall be considered by the Commission or be 

admissible as evidence in a hearing on the merits in this matter. 

5. WAIVER 

a. Milam knowingly and voluntarily waives her right to further proceedings before 

the Commission on the Ethics Complaint and all rights she may be accorded 

with regard to this matter pursuant to NRS Chapter 281A, the regulations of the 

Commission (NAC Chapter 281A), the Nevada Administrative Procedures Act 

(NRS Chapter 233B) and any other applicable provisions of law, except as 

these provisions of Nevada law pertain to the enforcement of this Stipulated 

Agreement.  

b. Milam knowingly and voluntarily waives her right to any judicial review of this 

matter as provided in NRS 281A, NRS 233B or any other applicable provisions 

of law, except as these provisions of Nevada law pertain to the enforcement of 

this Stipulated Agreement. 

6. ACCEPTANCE: We, the undersigned parties, have read this Stipulated 

Agreement, understand each and every provision therein, and agree to be bound thereby.  

The parties orally agreed to be bound by the terms of this agreement during the regular 

meeting of the Commission on October 20, 2021.2 

 
DATED this   day of         , 2021. DRAFT          
       Danielle Milam 

 
The above Stipulated Agreement is approved by: 

 
 FOR DANIELLE MILAM, Subject 

 
DATED this __day of       , 2021. DRAFT          
       Mitchell Stipp, Esq. 

 Counsel for Subject 

 
2 Subject waived any right to receive written notice pursuant to NRS 241.033 of the time and place of the 
Commission’s meeting to consider her character, alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical 
or mental health. 
 



PROPOSED 
Stipulated Agreement 

Case No. 20-063C 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 

 
 
DATED this   day of         , 2021. DRAFT      

       Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. 
       Associate Counsel 

 
Approved as to form by: 
       FOR NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

 
DATED this   day of          , 2021. DRAFT      

       Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 
       Commission Counsel 
 
The above Stipulated Agreement is accepted by the Commission.3 

 

 
3 Vice-Chair Duffrin and Commissioners Sheets and Yen participated in the Review Panel hearing for Ethics 
Complaint No. 20-063C and are therefore precluded from participating in this Stipulated Agreement 
pursuant to NRS 281A.220(4). 

By: DRAFT      By: DRAFT      
 Kim Wallin, CPA, CMA, CFM  James Oscarson 
 Chair  Commissioner 

By: DRAFT      By: DRAFT      
 Barbara Gruenewald, Esq.  Thoran Towler, Esq. 
 Commissioner  Commissioner 

By: DRAFT      
 Teresa Lowry, Esq. 
 Commissioner 
 



 
 

 
Notice of Hearing to Consider Stipulated Agreement 

Page 1 of 2 

 

STATE OF NEVADA  
 

BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
 

In re Danielle Milam, Acting Deputy Director, 
Las Vegas-Clark County Library District, 
State of Nevada, 
 
                 Subject. / 

  Ethics Complaint 
 Case No. 20-063C 

 

  

NOTICE OF HEARING TO CONSIDER STIPULATED AGREEMENT 
NRS 281A.745 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, the Nevada Commission on Ethics (“Commission”) will hold a 
public meeting to consider a Proposed Stipulated Agreement regarding the allegations 
submitted in Ethics Complaint No 20-063C at the following time and location: 

 
 When:  Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 9:30 a.m. 
    
 Where: Nevada State Capitol Building 
  Guinn Room 
  101 N. Carson Street, Second Floor 
  Carson City, NV 89701 
    
  and via Zoom at: 

   
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82104238959?pwd=Z2pESHFDU053VkdYbkh6M2l3dTIrZz09 

 
Meeting ID: 821 0423 8959 

Passcode: 935222 
 

Subject has waived the personal notice requirements of NRS 241.033 (Nevada’s 
Open Meeting Law). 

 
 
DATED:       October 12, 2021    /s/ Tracy L. Chase  
 Tracy L. Chase, Esq. 

Commission Counsel 
 
  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82104238959?pwd=Z2pESHFDU053VkdYbkh6M2l3dTIrZz09


 
 

 
Notice of Hearing to Consider Stipulated Agreement 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics and that on this 
day in Carson City, Nevada, I transmitted a true and correct copy of the Notice of Hearing 
to Consider Stipulated Agreement in Request for Opinion No. 20-063C via electronic 
mail to the Parties as follows: 
 
 

For the Executive Director: 
 
Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq. 
Associate Counsel 
Kari Pedroza, Executive Assistant  
704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204 
Carson City, NV 89703 
 
For the Subject: 
 
Mitchell Stipp, Esq. 
Law Office of Mitchell Stipp 
1180 N. Town Center Drive,  
   Ste. 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89144 
 

 
 
Email:  ebassett@ethics.nv.gov 
 
Email:  k.pedroza@ethics.nv.gov  
 
 
 
 
 
Email:  mstipp@stipplaw.com  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
DATED:    October 12, 2021          
 Employee of the Nevada Commission on Ethics 

mailto:ebassett@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:k.pedroza@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:mstipp@stipplaw.com


Revised / /1   
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 1 of 4

NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS 
ETHICS COMPLAINT

1. Nevada
Ethics in Government Law ( se a separate form for each individual.)

TITLE OF PUBLIC
OFFICE:
(Position) 

PUBLIC ENTITY:
(Name of the entity employing  
this position) 

ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, 
ZIP CODE

TELEPHONE:
Work: Other: (Home, cell) 

EMAIL:

2. Describe  the public officer or employee that you  violated NRS Chapter
281A. (Include specific facts and circumstances to support your allegation: times, places, and the name
and position of each person involved.)

Check here if additional pages are attached. 

3. Is the alleged conduct currently pending before another administrative or judicial body? If yes,
describe:

NAME: Danielle Milam Acting Deputy Director

Las Vegas-Clark County Library District
7060 W. Windmill Lane Las Vegas, NV 89113

(702)507-6179 milamd@lvccld.org

✔

20-063C

Received September 8, 2020



Revised / 1   
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 2 of 4

4. NRS Chapter 281A requires public officers and employees to hold public office as a public trust and avoid conflicts
between public duties and private interests. (NRS 281A.020)  What provisions of NRS Chapter 281A are relevant
to the conduct alleged? Please check all that apply.

*Pursuant to NRS 281A.065, a public officer or employee has a commitment in a private capacity to the following persons :
1. Spouse; domestic partner
2. Household member
3. Family member within 3rd degree of consanguinity
4. Employer or spouse/domestic partner  employer

5. Substantial and continuing business relationship , i.e. partner associate
6. Substantially similar relationships

Statute Statutory Summary:

NRS 281A.400(1)
Seeking or accepting any gift, service, favor, employment, engagement, emolument or economic opportunity for himself or person to 
whom he has a commitment in a private capacity which would tend improperly to influence a reasonable person in his position to 
depart from the faithful and impartial discharge of his public duties. 

NRS 281A.400(2)
Using his position in government to secure or grant unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or advantages for himself, any 
business entity in which he has a significant pecuniary interest, or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity. 

NRS 281A.400(3) Participating as an agent of government in the negotiation or execution of a contract between the government and himself, any 
business entity in which he has a significant pecuniary interest or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity. 

NRS 281A.400(4)
Accepting any salary, retainer, augmentation, expense allowance or other compensation from any private source for himself or any 
person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity for the performance of his duties as a public officer or employee. 

NRS 281A.400(5)
Acquiring, through his public duties or relationships, any information which by law or practice is not at the time available 
to people generally, and using the information to further the pecuniary interests of himself or any other person or business entity. 

NRS 281A.400(6) Suppressing any governmental report or other document because it might tend to affect unfavorably his pecuniary interests or 
any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity.

NRS 281A.400(7)
Using governmental time, property, equipment or other facility to benefit his significant personal or  interest, or any
person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity.  (Some exceptions apply). 

NRS 281A.400(8)
A State Legislator using governmental time, property, equipment or other facility for a nongovernmental purpose or for the private 
benefit of himself or any other person, or requiring or authorizing a legislative employee, while on duty, to perform personal services 
or assist in a private activity. (Some exceptions apply). 

NRS 281A.400(9) Attempting to benefit his personal or  interest or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private
capacity through the influence of a subordinate. 

NRS 281A.400(10) Seeking other employment or contracts for himself or any person to whom he has a commitment in a private capacity through the 
use of his official position. 

NRS 281A.410 

Representing or counseling a private person for compensation on an issue pending before a public agency while employed, or 
within 1 year after leaving the service of a public agency, including before any state agency of the Executive or Legislative 
Department.  (State and local legislators and part-time public officers and employees may represent/counsel private persons before 
agencies they do not serve, except local legislators may not represent/counsel private persons before other local agencies within 
the same county.) 

NRS 281A.420(1)
Failing to sufficiently disclose his acceptance of a gift or loan, pecuniary interest, commitment in a private capacity to the interest of 
another person 

that is reasonably affected by an official matter.

NRS 281A.420(3) Failing to abstain from acting on an official matter which is materially affected by his acceptance of a gift or loan, pecuniary interest, 
or commitment in a private capacity to the interest of another person. 

NRS 281A.430 idding on or entering into a government contract in which he has a significant pecuniary interest. ( ome exceptions apply).

NRS 281A.500 Failing to file or timely file a Nevada Ethical Standards for Public Officers form.

NRS 281A.510 Accepting or receiving an improper honorarium. 

NRS 281A.520 Requesting or otherwise causing a governmental entity to incur an expense or make an expenditure to support or oppose a ballot 
question or candidate during the relevant timeframe. 

NRS 281A.550 Negotiating or accepting employment from a business or industry regulated by or contracted with former public agency within one 
year after leaving service of the agency. (Failing to honor the  "cooling off" period after leaving public service ).

✔



Revised / /1   
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 3 of 4

5. YOU MUST SUBMIT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT YOUR ALLEGATIONS.
Attach all documents or items you believe support your allegations

.

State the total number of additional pages attached (including evidence) _________.

6. Witnesses: Identify persons who have knowledge of the facts and circumstances you have described, as
the person will provide. Check here if additional pages are attached.

NAME and TITLE:
(Person #1)

ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, ZIP

TELEPHONE:
Work: Other: (Home, cell) E-MAIL:

NATURE OF
TESTIMONY:

NAME and TITLE:
(Person #2)

ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, ZIP

TELEPHONE:
Work: Other: (Home, cell) E-MAIL:

NATURE OF
TESTIMONY:

✔



Revised / /1   
Nevada Commission on Ethics

Ethics Complaint
Page 4 of 4

7. REQUESTER INFORMATION:

YOUR NAME:

YOUR
ADDRESS: CITY, STATE, ZIP:

YOUR
TELEPHONE:

Day: Evening: E-MAIL:

OR

By my signature below, I affirm that the facts set forth in this document and all of its attachments are true
and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I am willing to provide sworn testimony regarding these 
allegations. I acknowledge that this Ethics Complaint, the materials submitted in support of the allegations, 
and the Commission’s investigation are confidential unless and until the Commission’s

Signature: Date: 

Print Name: 

9/2/20

✔























































































































































































































































































































































































From: Mitchell Stipp
To: Elizabeth Bassett
Cc: Tracy L. Chase; Darci L. Hayden; Kari Anne Pedroza
Subject: Re: 20-063C (Milam)
Date: Wednesday, September 22, 2021 9:32:11 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Ms. Milam will waive the notice requirements of NRS 241.033 for the meeting on October 20,
2021.

Logo

www.stipplaw.com

Mitchell D. Stipp
Law Office of Mitchell Stipp, P.C. 
1180 N. Town Center Drive, Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89144
T: 702.602.1242 | M: 702.378.1907
E: mstipp@stipplaw.com 

On Wed, Sep 22, 2021 at 9:27 AM Elizabeth Bassett <EBassett@ethics.nv.gov> wrote:

Mr. Stipp-

 

Can you also confirm that you believe Ms. Milam will sign the open meeting law waiver
that Ms. Chase attached to her earlier email so that the stipulation can be placed on and
discussed at the Commission’s October 20th meeting?

 

Thank you.

 

Elizabeth J. Bassett, Esq.

Associate Counsel

Nevada Commission on Ethics

704 West Nye Lane, Suite 204

mailto:mstipp@stipplaw.com
mailto:EBassett@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:tchase@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:dhayden@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:k.pedroza@ethics.nv.gov
https://www.stipplaw.com/
http://www.stipplaw.com/
tel:702.602.1242
tel:702.378.1907
mailto:mstipp@stipplaw.com
mailto:EBassett@ethics.nv.gov


Agenda Item 9 



Current Case Log DOCUMENT CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION -
DO NOT PUBLICALLY DISSEMINATE IN ANY MANNER

October 20, 2021

RFO No. Date Filed Jurisdiction
Local or 

State
Subject Requester Status

21-078C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Jurisdictional Review
21-077C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Jurisdictional Review
21-076C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Jurisdictional Review
21-074A XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Submission/ Opinion
21-071C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Jurisdictional Review
21-070C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Jurisdictional Review
21-069C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Pending Jurisdictional Review
21-062C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending

21-055A XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Opinion issued 9/9/21;                                                                                                                                         

Abstract Pending

21-039C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
21-038C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
21-032C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
21-029C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending; Consolidated w/21-028C
21-028C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending; Consolidated w/21-029C
21-014C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Review Panel Pending 

21-007C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Deferral Agreement 8/16/21; Compliance Period expires 8/16/23, Must Attend Ethics 

Training

21-006C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Deferral Agreement 8/16/21; Compliance Period expires 8/16/23, Must Attend Ethics 

Training
20-085C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-083C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-081C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-077C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-076C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-075C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-064C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Adjudicatory Proceedings Pending
20-063C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Stipulated Agreement Pending
20-060C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending

20-048C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-023C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-018C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending
20-010C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Stipulated Agreement Pending
20-007C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Adjudicatory Proceedings Pending
20-001C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Review Panel Pending 
19-126C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Investigation Pending

19-105C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Stipulated Agreement 9/3/20; Compliance Pending - $6,500 Civil Penalty ($966.67 

Remaining as of 10/1/21); Consolidated with 19-081C & 19-082C
19-102C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Adjudicatory Proceedings Pending
19-095C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Stipulated Agreement Pending
19-088C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Adjudicatory Proceedings Pending

19-082C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Stipulated Agreement 9/3/20; Compliance Pending - $6,500 Civil Penalty ($966.67 

Remaining as of 10/1/21); Consolidated with 19-081C & 19-105C

19-081C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Stipulated Agreement 9/3/20; Compliance Pending - $6,500 Civil Penalty ($966.67 

Remaining as of 10/1/21); Consolidated with 19-082C & 19-105C

19-044C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Deferral Agreement 2/20/20; Compliance Period expires 2/20/25 

19-039C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Deferral Agreement 10/14/19; Compliance Period expires 10/14/21
19-018C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX Stipulated Agreement 6/17/19;  $8,700 Civil Penalty paid in full

19-004C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Deferral Agreement 6/4/20; Compliance Period expires 6/4/22, Must Attend Ethics 

Training

18-060C XXXXX XXXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX
Stipulated Agreement 11/18/19; $13,881.36 Civil Penalty due 6/30/23 ($10,299.04 

Remaining as of 9/1/21)

↑ FISCAL YEAR 2022 ↑

↑ FISCAL YEAR 2021 ↑

↑ FISCAL YEAR 2020 ↑

↑ FISCAL YEAR 2019 ↑
Page 1 of 1


	Item 3_20210915_Meeting_Minutes.pdf
	MINUTES

	Item 4_Weber Public Book.pdf
	01_20211013_PROPOSED_StipulatedDeferralAgreement_20-010 (Weber)
	STATE OF NEVADA
	BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS
	PROPOSED
	STIPULATED DEFERRAL AGREEMENT

	In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember,
	City Council, City of Reno, 
	State of Nevada, 
	 Subject. /                                                             

	02_20211012_NOH_Stip_20-010C(Weber)
	03_Cmplt_Weber_Bonnie _20005133a_Redacted
	04_20200402_AmendedNtc2Subject_20-010C(Weber)_dh
	COMMISSION ON ETHICS
	704 W. Nye Lane, Suite 204
	Carson City, Nevada 89703
	(775) 687-5469 • Fax (775) 687-1279
	ethics.nv.gov
	In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember,
	City Council, City of Reno, 
	State of Nevada,

	05_20200402_AmendedOrderReJDInvestigation(Yen disclosure)_20-010C(Weber)
	BEFORE THE NEVADA COMMISSION ON ETHICS
	In re Bonnie Weber, Councilmember,
	City Council, City of Reno, 
	State of Nevada,

	07_20210818_PanelDetermination_20-010C(Weber)
	08_211007 Weber_Signed OML and Adj Hearing Waivers

	Item 5_Alworth Public Book.pdf
	01_20211013_Propt_StipulatedAgreement_19-095 (Alworth)_2Com
	02_20210928_NOH_Stip_19-095C(Alworth)
	04_20191001_Ethics_Complaint No. 19-095C(Alworth)_Redacted
	04a_20190923_Evidence(Requester'sMailedComplaintLetter)_Redacted
	05_20191118_Ntc2Subject_19-095C(Alworth)
	06_20191118_OrderReJDInvestigation_19-095C(Alworth)
	08_20210715_Ntc2SubjectAddnlFacts_19-095C(Alworth)
	10_20210818 PanelDetermination 19-095 (Alworth)
	11_20200908_WAIVER_AdjHearing(Signed)_19-095C(Alworth)
	12_20200908_WaiverOML(Signed)_19-095C(Alworth)

	Item 6_Milam Public Book.pdf
	01_20211011_FinalProposedStipulatedAgreement_20-063 (Milam)
	02_20211012_NOH_Stip_20-063C(Milam)
	03_20200908_Complaint No. 20-063C(Milam) and Evidence_dh_TypedRedacted
	04-20201026 Notice to Subject Packet 20-063C (Milam)
	05_20201026_OrderReJDInvestigation_20-063C(Milam)_Signed
	07_20210119_PanelDetermination_20-063C_(Milam)
	08_20210922_WaiverOML_Confirmed_Re_ 20-063C (Milam)




